MINUTES BOX ELDER COUNTY COMMISSION OCTOBER 05, 2022

The Board of County Commissioners of Box Elder County, Utah met in an Administrative / Operational Session at the Historic County Courthouse, 1 South Main Street in Brigham City, Utah at 4:45 p.m. on October 05, 2022. The following members were present:

Jeff Scott

Chairman

Stan Summers

Commissioner

Jeff Hadfield

Commissioner

Marla Young

Clerk

The following items were discussed:

- 1. Agenda
- 2. Commissioners' Correspondence
- 3. Staff Reports Agenda Related
- 4. Correspondence

The Administrative / Operational Session adjourned at 4:54 p.m.

The regular session was called to order by Chairman Scott at 5:00 p.m. with the following members present, constituting a quorum:

Jeff Scott

Chairman

Stan Summers

Commissioner

Jeff Hadfield

Commissioner

Marla Young

Clerk

The prayer was offered by Chairman Scott.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Marla Young.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 and SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 WERE APPROVED AS WRITTEN ON A MOTION BY COMMISSIONER HADFIELD, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SUMMERS, AND UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED.

ATTACHMENT NO. 1 - AGENDA

<u>ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW / REPORTS / FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS -</u> COMMISSION

There were no Administrative Review items discussed.

FORMER AGENDA ITEMS, FOLLOW UP - COMMISSIONERS

Chairman Scott stated the Commissioners awarded the bid for the remodel of the County Attorney's Office in the last Commission meeting. They now have the official contract that needs to be signed.

Attorney Stephen Hadfield stated it has been reviewed and the Commission should authorize Codey Illum to sign it.

MOTION: Commissioner Summers made a motion to authorize Codey Illum to sign Contract #22-33 with E.K. Bailey Company. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hadfield and unanimously carried with a roll call vote of Chairman Scott voting Yea, Commissioner Hadfield voting Yea, and Commissioner Summers voting Yea.

ATTACHMENT NO. 2 - Contract #22-33

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ISSUES

COVID-19 Emergency Leave - Chairman Scott

Chairman Scott explained the Emergency Sick Leave Policy for COVID-19 expired at the end of September. He stated COVID-19 is still around but the variants are much more mild.

MOTION: Commissioner Hadfield made a motion to extend the Emergency Sick Leave Policy to December 31, 2022. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Summers and unanimously carried with a roll call vote of Chairman Scott voting Yea, Commissioner Hadfield voting Yea, and Commissioner Summers voting Yea.

ARPA

Broadband Request - Commissioner Summers

Commissioner Summers said it has come to the attention of the Commissioners that the Marble Hills area was left off the initial broadband request. He suggested they allocate \$417,000.00 from the ARPA funding for that area.

Chairman Scott commented that it will not only impact homes that are currently in that location but also future development.

MOTION: Commissioner Summers made a motion to approve \$417,000.00 of ARPA funding to go toward broadband expansion. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hadfield and unanimously carried with a roll call vote of Chairman Scott voting Yea, Commissioner Hadfield voting Yea, and Commissioner Summers voting Yea.

Veterans Affairs funding - Commissioner Summers

Commissioner Summers reported they received a request to assist the Veterans. He suggested \$200,000.00 from ARPA funds be given to help Veterans. He said BRAG may have matching funds for the program to help veterans to know what benefits are available to them.

MOTION: Commissioner Summers made a motion to approve \$200,000.00 of ARPA funds for Veterans Affairs. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hadfield and unanimously carried on a roll call vote of Chairman Scott voting Yea, Commissioner Hadfield voting Yea, and Commissioner Summers voting Yea.

PUBLIC INTERESTS / PRESENTATIONS / CONCERNS

Fundraiser Pickleball Tournament, Waive Fee on Building at Fair Grounds-Donna Fronk

Terri Fridal representing the Tremonton Women's Civic League explained they are holding a fundraiser in the form of a pickleball tournament January 19-21, 2023 at the fairgrounds. She asked the Commissioners to consider waiving the fee for the rental of the building at the fairgrounds.

Chairman Scott stated they may be required to pay fees for staffing if needed.

MOTION: Commissioner Hadfield made a motion to waive the rental fee for the Fine Arts Building at the fairgrounds January 19-21, 2023. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Summers and unanimously carried on a roll call vote of Chairman Scott voting Yea, Commissioner Hadfield voting Yea, and Commissioner Summers voting Yea.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Austin Storey Subdivision-Scott Lyons

County Planner Marcus Wager explained the Austin Storey Subdivision is a 1-lot subdivision located at 5540 N. Calls Fort Road. The plat has been through all the necessary department reviews.

MOTION: Commissioner Summers made a motion to approve the Austin Storey Subdivision. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hadfield and unanimously carried on a roll call vote with Chairman Scott voting Yea, Commissioner Hadfield voting Yea, and Commissioner Summers voting Yea.

Corridor Preservation Project Fund- CPF19-01 Brigham City Request for Payment-Scott Lyons

County Planner Marcus Wager explained Brigham City has requested reimbursement in the amount of \$31,850.00 from the Corridor Preservation Fund. He stated this amount was not listed on the initial request but falls within the original amount.

MOTION: Commissioner Hadfield made a motion to approve the request of \$31,850.00 for Project #CPF19-01 for Brigham City. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Summers and unanimously carried on a roll call vote of Chairman Scott voting Yea, Commissioner Hadfield voting Yea, and Commissioner Summers voting Yea.

Ben Wheelwright Subdivision 1-lot-Scott Lyons

County Planner Marcus Wager presented the Ben Wheelwright Subdivision 1-Lot. He stated it is a 1-lot subdivision located north of Bear River City. The plat has been through all the necessary department reviews.

MOTION: Commissioner Summers made a motion to approve the Ben Wheelwright Subdivision 1-Lot. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hadfield and unanimously carried with a roll call vote of Chairman Scott voting Yea, Commissioner Hadfield voting Yea, and Commissioner Summers voting Yea.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Retirement Incentive 2023-Jenica Stander

Diane Black of the Human Resource Department gave details of the retirement incentive for 2023. She stated there are seventeen eligible employees and it would be a cost savings to the county of \$308,445.70 if all were to retire. She stated the incentive is the same as prior years.

There was some discussion regarding how difficult it is to hire replacements.

MOTION: Commissioner Hadfield made a motion to table this item. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Summers and this item was tabled.

The Commissioners recessed to hold an RDA Meeting.

WARRANT REGISTER - COMMISSIONERS

The Warrant Register was signed and the following claims were approved: Claim numbers 118882 through 118964 in the amount of \$1,554,259.37, with Voided claims 118518, 118901, 118902, 118903, 115509, 115618, 114470, 113023, 114134, 114327, 113819, 113546, 113165, and claim numbers 118965 through 119016 in the amount \$160,198.76.

PERSONNEL ACTIONS / VOLUNTEER ACTION FORMS - COMMISSIONERS

Employee Name:	Department:	PA Type:	Effective
			Date:
MERKLEY, STEVEN	4211 PATROLL	TRAINEE TO DEPUTY	10/01/2022
ANDERSON, KYLEE	4235 CORRECTIONS	PUBLIC EE TO PUBLIC	09/29/2022
		SAFETY	
WAGSTAFF, TYLER	4144 ROADS	NEW EMPLOYEE	10/03/2022
FARMER, KALEENA	4580 BOOKMOBILE	SEPARATION	10/04/2022
WAGSTAFF, TYLER	4144 ROADS	CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE	10/04/2022
PALMER, CADE	4200 ADMIN	WAGE INCREASE	09/01/2022
ANDERSON, CHASE	4414 ROADS	WAGE INCREASE	09/28/2022
CASTEEL, CAROLYN	4235 CORRECTIONS	SEPARATION	09/14/2022

CLOSED SESSION

Strategy session to discuss the character, professional competence, or physical or mental health of an individual and pending or reasonably imminent litigation

MOTION: At 5:38 p.m. a motion was made by Commissioner Summers to move into a closed session. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hadfield and unanimously carried

MOTION: At 5:58 p.m. a motion was made by Commissioner Summers to reconvene into regular commission meeting. Commissioner Hadfield seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously and regular Commission meeting was reconvened.

ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Commissioner Summers to adjourn. Commissioner Hadfield seconded the motion, and the meeting adjourned at 5:59 p.m.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED in regular session this 19th day of October 2022.

Jeff Scott/Chairman

Stan Summers, Commissioner

Jeff Hadfield, Commissioner

Mark D. Voung Clark

ATTEST:



COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

Commission Chambers, 01 South Main Street, Brigham City, Utah 84302 Wednesday, October 05, 2022 at 5:00 PM

AGENDA

NOTICE: Public notice is hereby given that the Box Elder County Board of County Commissioners will hold an Administrative/Operational Session commencing at 4:45 P.M. and a regular Commission Meeting commencing at 5:00 P.M. on Wednesday October 5, 2022 in the Commission Chambers of the Box Elder County Courthouse, 01 South Main Street, Brigham City, Utah.

1. ADMINISTRATIVE / OPERATIONAL SESSION

- A. Agenda Review / Supporting Documents
- B. Commissioners' Correspondence
- C. Staff Reports

2. CALL TO ORDER 5:00 P.M.

- A. Invocation Given by: Chairman Scott
- B. Pledge of Allegiance Given by: Marla Young
- C. Approve Minutes From 09-07-2022 and 09-20-2022

3. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW / REPORTS / FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

- 4. FORMER AGENDA ITEMS
- 5. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ISSUES
- 6. ARPA

7. PUBLIC INTERESTS / PRESENTATIONS / CONCERNS

A. 5:08 Fundraiser Pickleball Tournament, Waive Fee on Building at Fair Grounds-Donna Fronk

8. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

- A. 5:13 Austin Storey Subdivision-Scott Lyons
- B. 5:15 Corridor Preservation Project Fund- CPF19-01 Brigham City Request for Payment-Scott Lyons
- C. 5:17 Ben Wheelwright Subdivision 1-lot-Scott Lyons

9. HUMAN RESOURCES

- A. 5:20 Retirement Incentive 2023-Jenica Stander
- 10. WARRANT REGISTER
- 11. PERSONNEL ACTIONS / VOLUNTEER ACTION FORMS / CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE
- 12. CLOSED SESSION

13. ADJOURNMENT

Prepared and posted this 30th day of September, 2022. Mailed to the Box Elder News Journal and the Leader on the 30th of September, 2022. These assigned times may vary depending on the length of discussion, cancellation of scheduled agenda times and agenda alteration. Therefore, the times are estimates of agenda items to be discussed. If you have any interest in any topic you need to be in attendance at 5:00 p.m.

Marla R. Young - County Clerk

Box Elder County

NOTE: Please turn off or silence cell phones and pagers during public meetings. This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must be made three (3) working days prior to this meeting. Please contact the Commission Secretary's office at (435) 734-3347 or FAX (435) 734-2038 for information or assistance.

DOCUMENT 00 53 01 CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A FACILITY PROJECT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICL	E 1 - THE WORK				
1.01	Work4				
ARTICL	ARTICLE 2 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS4				
2.01	Intent of Contract Documents4				
2.02	Contract Documents Defined4				
ARTICL	E 3 - ENGINEER5				
3.01	Engineer5				
ARTICLE 4 - CONTRACT TIMES					
4.01	Contract Times5				
4.02	Liquidated Damages5				
4.03	Delays in Contractor's Progress5				
4.04	Progress Schedules5				
ARTICLE	5 - CONTRACT PRICE				
5.01	Payment 6				
ARTICLE	6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE6				
6.01	Bonds 6				
6.02	Insurance6				
ARTICLE	7 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES8				
7.01	Supervision and Superintendence				
7.02	Other Work at the Site8				
7.03	Services, Materials, and Equipment8				
7.04	Subcontractors and Suppliers8				
7.05	Quality Management9				
7.06	Licenses, Fees and Permits9				
7.07	Laws and Regulations; Taxes9				
7.08	Record Documents9				
7.09	Safety and Protection9				
7.10	Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals10				
7.11	Warranties and Guarantees10				

CONTRACT - FACILITY PROJECT

7.12 Correction Period 11 7.13 Indemnification 11 ARTICLE 8 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 11
ARTICLE 8 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES
TI
8.01 Owner's Responsibilities
ARTICLE 9 - ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION
9.01 Engineer's Status12
ARTICLE 10 - CHANGES IN THE WORK12
10.01 Authority to Change the Work
10.02 Change Orders12
ARTICLE 11 - DIFFERING SUBSURFACE OR PHYSICAL CONDITIONS
11.01 Differing Conditions Process
ARTICLE 12 - CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
12.01 Claims Process
ARTICLE 13 - TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK14
13.01 Tests and Inspections14
13.02 Defective Work
ARTICLE 14 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR
14.01 Progress Payments 14
14.02 Applications for Payments:14
14.03 Retainage
14.04 Review of Applications
14.05 Contractor's Warranty of Title
14.06 Substantial Completion
14.07 Final Inspection15
14.08 Final Payment
14.09 Waiver of Claims
ARTICLE 15 - SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION16
15.01 Owner May Suspend Work
15.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause
15.03 Owner May Terminate for Convenience
15.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate
ARTICLE 16 - CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS
16.01 Contractor Representations
ARTICLE 17 - MISCELLANEOUS
17.01 Cumulative Remedies

CONTRACT – FACILITY PROJECT 00 53 01 17.02 Limitation of Damages 18 17.03 No Waiver 19 17.04 Survival of Obligations 19 17.05 Contractor's Certifications 19 17.06 Controlling Law 19

[continued on next page]

This Contract is by and between	Box Elder County	(Owner) and
E.K. Bailey Construction		(Contractor),

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - THE WORK

1.01 Work

- A. Work includes all labor, materials, equipment, services, and documentation necessary to construct the Project defined herein. The Work may include related services such as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by the Contract Documents.
- B. The Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Project is generally described as follows: Justice Center Remodel Project.
- C. The Site is located at: 81 North Main Street, Brigham City, UT 84302

ARTICLE 2 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2.01 Intent of Contract Documents

- A. It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete project. The Contract Documents do not indicate or describe all of the Work required to complete the Project. Additional details required for the correct installation of selected products are to be provided by the Contractor and coordinated with the Owner and Engineer. This Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether written or oral. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one part of the Contract Documents is as binding as if required by other parts of the Contract Documents.
- During the performance of the Work and until final payment, Contractor and Owner shall submit all matters in question concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents, or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents to the Engineer. Engineer will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents, and judge of the acceptability of the Work thereunder.
- C. Engineer will render a written clarification, interpretation, or decision on the issue submitted, or initiate a modification to the Contract Documents.
- D. Contractor, and its subcontractors and suppliers, shall not have or acquire any title to or ownership rights to any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other documents (including copies or electronic media editions) prepared by Engineer or its consultants.

2.02 Contract Documents Defined

- The Contract Documents consist of the following documents:
 - This Contract.
 - 2. Performance bond.
 - 3. Payment bond.
 - Drawings as listed on the Drawing Sheet Index.
 - 5. Addenda.
 - Exhibits to this Contract (enumerated as follows):

- Bid Form (as submitted by CONTRACTOR on BID OPENING DATE)
- b. Change Orders (where applicable and as issued after the Effective Date of the Contract)

ARTICLE 3 - ENGINEER

3.01 Engineer

- A. The Engineer for this Project is Jones & Associates Consulting Engineers.
- B. The Engineer shall provide initial design and drawings and provides support as requested by the Owner during construction.

ARTICLE 4 - CONTRACT TIMES

4.01 Contract Times

A. The Work will be substantially completed on or before **April 1, 2023**, and completed and ready for final payment on or before **April 30, 2023**.

4.02 Liquidated Damages

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence in the performance of the Contract, and that Owner will incur damages if Contractor does not complete the Work according to the requirements of Paragraph 4.01. Because such damages for delay would be difficult and costly to determine, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay Owner \$1,000 for each day that expires after the Contract Time for substantial completion.

4.03 Delays in Contractor's Progress

- A. If Owner, Engineer, or anyone for whom Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the performance or progress of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Times and Contract Price. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times.
- B. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for delay, disruption, or interference caused by or within the control of Contractor or their subcontractors or suppliers.
- C. If Contractor's performance or progress is delayed, disrupted, or interfered with by unanticipated causes not the fault of and beyond the control of Owner, Contractor, and those for which they are responsible, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Times.
- D. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for any delay, disruption, or interference if such delay is concurrent with a delay, disruption, or interference caused by or within the control of Contractor or Contractor's subcontractors or suppliers.

4.04 Progress Schedules

A. Contractor shall develop a progress schedule and submit to the Owner for review and comment before starting Work on the Site. The Contractor shall modify the schedule in accordance with the comments provided by the Owner.

B. The Contractor shall update and submit the progress schedule to the Owner each month. The Owner may withhold payment if the Contractor fails to submit the schedule.

ARTICLE 5 - CONTRACT PRICE

5.01 Payment

- A. Owner shall pay Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents at the following unit prices for each unit of Work completed.
 - 1. For all Work the prices stated in the Contractor's Bid, attached as an exhibit.

ARTICLE 6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

6.01 Bonds

A. Before starting Work, Contractor shall furnish a performance bond and a payment bond from surety companies that are duly licensed or authorized to issue bonds in the required amounts in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located. Each bond shall be in an amount equal to the Contract Price, as security for the faithful performance and payment of all of Contractor's obligations under the Contract. These bonds shall remain in effect until the completion of the correction period specified in Paragraph 7.12 but, in any case, not less than one year after the date when final payment becomes due.

6.02 Insurance

- A. Before starting Work, Contractor shall furnish evidence of insurance from companies that are duly licensed or authorized in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located with a minimum AM Best rating of A-VII or better. Contractor shall provide insurance in accordance with the following:
 - 1. Contractor shall provide coverage for not less than the following amounts, or greater where required by Laws and Regulations:
 - a. Workers' Compensation:

	State:		Statutory
	Employer's Liability:		
	Bodily Injury/Disease Aggregate	\$	1,000,000
Ь.	Commercial General Liability:		
	Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property		
	Damage)	\$	1,000,000
	Personal and Advertising Injury	\$	1,000,000
	General Aggregate	\$	2,000,000
	Products - Completed Operations Aggregate	\$.	1,000,000
c.	Automobile Liability herein:		
	Bodily Injury:		
	Each Person	\$	500,000
	Each Accident	\$	1,000,000
	Property Damage:		

	Each Accident	\$ 1,000,000
	[or]	
	Combined Single Limit of:	\$ 1,000,000
d.	Excess or Umbrella Liability:	
	Per Occurrence	\$ 2,000,000
	General Aggregate	\$ 2,000,000

- e. Not Used.
- B. All insurance policies required to be purchased and maintained will contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled or materially changed or renewal refused until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to the insured and additional insured.
- C. Automobile liability insurance provided by Contractor shall provide coverage against claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle. The automobile liability policy shall be written on an occurrence basis.
- D. Contractor's commercial general liability policy shall be written on a 1996 or later ISO commercial general liability occurrence form and include the following coverages and endorsements:
 - 1. Products and completed operations coverage maintained for three years after final payment;
 - 2. Blanket contractual liability coverage to the extent permitted by law;
 - 3. Broad form property damage coverage; and
 - 4. Severability of interest; underground, explosion, and collapse coverage; personal injury coverage.
- E. The Contractor's commercial general liability and automobile liability, umbrella or excess, and pollution liability policies shall include and list Owner and Engineer and the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each as additional insureds; and the insurance afforded to these additional insureds shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby (including as applicable those arising from both ongoing and completed operations) on a non-contributory basis.
 - 1. Additional insured endorsements will include both ongoing operations and products and completed operations coverage through ISO Endorsements CG 20 10 10 01 and CG 20 37 10 01 (together). If Contractor demonstrates to Owner that the specified ISO endorsements are not commercially available, then Contractor may satisfy this requirement by providing equivalent endorsements.
 - 2. Contractor shall provide ISO Endorsement CG 20 32 07 04, "Additional Insured— Engineers, Architects or Surveyors Not Engaged by the Named Insured" or its equivalent for design professional additional insureds.
- F. Umbrella or excess liability insurance shall be written over the underlying employer's liability, commercial general liability, and automobile liability insurance. Subject to industry-standard exclusions, the coverage afforded shall be procured on a "follow the form" basis as to each of the underlying policies. Contractor may demonstrate to Owner that Contractor has met

the combined limits of insurance (underlying policy plus applicable umbrella) specified for employer's liability, commercial general liability, and automobile liability through the primary policies alone, or through combinations of the primary insurance policies and an umbrella or excess liability policy.

- G. The Contractor shall provide property insurance covering physical loss or damage during construction to structures, materials, fixtures, and equipment, including those materials, fixtures, or equipment in storage or transit.
- H. If Contractor has failed to obtain and maintain required insurance, Owner may exclude the Contractor from the Site, impose an appropriate set-off against payment, and exercise Owner's termination rights under Article 15.

ARTICLE 7 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

7.01 Supervision and Superintendence

- A. Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, safety, and procedures of construction.
- B. Contractor shall assign a competent resident superintendent who is to be present at all times during the execution of the Work. This resident superintendent shall not be replaced without written notice to and approval by the Owner except under extraordinary circumstances.
- C. Contractor shall at all times maintain good discipline and order at the Site.
- D. Except as otherwise required for the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all Work at the Site shall be performed during regular working hours, Monday through Friday.

7.02 Other Work at the Site

A. In addition to and apart from the Work of the Contractor, other work may occur at or adjacent to the Site. Contractor shall take reasonable and customary measures to avoid damaging, delaying, disrupting, or interfering with the work of Owner, any other contractor, or any utility owner performing other work at or adjacent to the Site.

7.03 Services, Materials, and Equipment

- A. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall provide and assume full responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the performance, testing, start up, and completion of the Work, whether or not such items are specifically called for in the Contract Documents.
- B. All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work shall be new, of good quality and shall be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable supplier, except as otherwise may be provided in the Contract Documents.

7.04 Subcontractors and Suppliers

A. Contractor may retain subcontractors and suppliers for the performance of parts of the Work. Such subcontractors and suppliers must be acceptable to Owner.

B. Contractor shall not subcontract for more than 50% of the contract price without express, written approval from Owner.

7.05 Quality Management

A. Contractor is fully responsible for the managing quality to ensure Work is completed in accordance with the Contract Documents.

7.06 Licenses, Fees and Permits

- A. Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to performing the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others.
- B. Contractor shall obtain and pay for all construction permits and licenses unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.
- C. It is not necessary for Contractor to obtain or pay for local building permits, plan check fees, electrical permits, plumbing permits, connection fees, or impact fees, nor will it be necessary to pay fees for inspections pertaining thereto.

7.07 Laws and Regulations; Taxes

- A. Contractor shall give all notices required by and shall comply with all local, state, and federal Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws and Regulations, neither Owner nor Engineer shall be responsible for monitoring Contractor's compliance with any Laws or Regulations.
- B. Contractor shall bear all resulting costs and losses, and shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages if Contractor performs any Work or takes any other action knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or Regulations.
- C. Contractor shall pay all applicable sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes Contractor is required to pay in accordance with Laws and Regulations.

7.08 Record Documents

A. Contractor shall maintain one printed record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, written interpretations and clarifications, and approved shop drawings in a safe place at the Site. Contractor shall annotate them to show changes made during construction. Contractor shall deliver these record documents to Engineer upon completion of the Work.

7.09 Safety and Protection

- A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work.
- B. Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to:
 - 1. All persons on the Site/Facility or who may be affected by the Work;
 - 2. All the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site/Facility; and
 - 3. Other property at the Site/Facility or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, other work in progress, utilities, and

underground facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.

- C. All damage, injury, or loss to any property caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Contractor, or anyone for whose acts the Contractor may be liable, shall be remedied by Contractor at its expense (except damage or loss attributable to the fault of Contract Documents or to the acts or omissions of Owner or Engineer and not attributable, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of Contractor).
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of material safety data sheets or other hazard communication information required to be made available to or exchanged between or among employers at the Site in accordance with Laws or Regulations.
- E. In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, Contractor shall act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Contractor shall give Owner prompt written notice if Contractor believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby or are required as a result thereof. If Owner determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of the action taken by Contractor in response to such an emergency, a Work Change Directive or Change Order will be issued.

7.10 Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals

- A. Contractor shall review and coordinate the shop drawing and samples with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents and shall verify all related field measurements, quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers, and similar information.
- B. Each submittal shall bear a stamp or specific written certification that Contractor has satisfied Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to Contractor's review of that submittal, and that Contractor approves the submittal.
- C. With each submittal, Contractor shall give Owner specific written notice, in a communication separate from the submittal, of any variations that the shop drawing or sample may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- D. Engineer will provide timely review of shop drawings and samples.
- E. Engineer's review and approval will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or to safety precautions or programs.
- F. Engineer's review and approval of a separate item does not indicate approval of the assembly in which the item functions.
- G. Contractor shall make corrections required by Engineer and shall return the required number of corrected copies of shop drawings and submit, as required, new samples for review and approval. Contractor shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for by Engineer on previous submittals.
- H. Shop drawings are not Contract Documents.

7.11 Warranties and Guarantees

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees to Owner that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be defective. Owner and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors shall be entitled to rely on Contractor's warranty and guarantee.

7.12 Correction Period

A. If within one year after the date of substantial completion, any Work is found to be defective, or if the repair of any damages to the Site, adjacent areas that Contractor has arranged to use through construction easements or otherwise, and other adjacent areas used by Contractor as permitted by Laws and Regulations, is found to be defective, then Contractor shall promptly and without cost to Owner, correct such defective Work.

7.13 Indemnification

A. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, and in addition to any other obligations of Contractor under the Contract or otherwise, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the performance of the Work, provided that any such claim, cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Contractor, any subcontractor, any supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work or anyone for whose acts they may be liable.

7.14 Relationship to Owner

A. The relationship of the Contractor to the Owner hereunder is that of an independent Contractor.

ARTICLE 8 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

8.01 Owner's Responsibilities

- A. Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Owner shall issue all communications to Contractor through the Engineer.
- B. Owner shall make payments to Contractor as provided in this Contract.
- C. Owner shall provide Site and easements required to construct the Project.
- D. If Owner intends to contract with others for the performance of other work at or adjacent to the Site, unless stated elsewhere in the Contract Documents, Owner shall have sole authority and responsibility for such coordination.
- E. The Owner shall be responsible for performing inspections and tests required by applicable codes.
- F. The Owner shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible for, Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Owner will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- G. While at the Site, Owner's employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable requirements of Contractor's safety programs of which Owner has been informed.
- H. Owner shall furnish copies of any applicable Owner safety programs to Contractor.

ARTICLE 9 - ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION

9.01 Engineer's Status

- A. Engineer will be Owner's representative during design, pre-construction, and construction. The duties and responsibilities and the limitations of authority of Engineer as Owner's representative during construction are set forth in this Contract.
- B. Neither Engineer's authority or responsibility under this Article 9 or under any other provision of the Contract, nor any decision made by Engineer in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such authority or responsibility or the undertaking, exercise, or performance of any authority or responsibility by Engineer, shall create, impose, or give rise to any duty in contract, tort, or otherwise owed by Engineer to Contractor, any subcontractor, any supplier, any other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee or agent of any of them.
- C. Engineer will make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction. Engineer will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous inspections on the Site to check the quality or quantity of the Work.
- D. Engineer has the authority to reject Work if Contractor fails to perform Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- E. Engineer will render decisions regarding the requirements of the Contract Documents and judge the acceptability of the Work.
- F. Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 10 - CHANGES IN THE WORK

10.01 Authority to Change the Work

A. Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any surety, Owner may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work.

10.02 Change Orders

- A. Owner and Contractor shall execute appropriate Change Orders covering:
 - Changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which are agreed to by the parties, including any undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with a Work Change Directive;
 - Changes in the Work which are: (a) ordered by Owner or (b) agreed to by the parties or (c) resulting from the Engineer's decision, subject to the need for Engineer's recommendation if the change in the Work involves the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or other engineering or technical matters; and
 - 3. Changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times or other changes which embody the substance of any final binding results under Article 12.
- B. If the provisions of any bond require notice to be given to a surety of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Times), the giving of any such notice will be

Contractor's responsibility. The amount of each applicable bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any such change.

ARTICLE 11 - DIFFERING SUBSURFACE OR PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

11.01 Differing Conditions Process

- A. If Contractor believes that any subsurface or physical condition including but not limited to utilities or other underground facilities that are uncovered or revealed at the Site/Facility either differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents or is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in Work of the character provided for in the Contract Documents then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing the subsurface or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency), notify Owner and Engineer in writing about such condition. Contractor shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in connection therewith (except with respect to an emergency) until receipt of a written statement permitting Contractor to do so.
- B. After receipt of written notice, Engineer will promptly:
 - 1. Review the subsurface or physical condition in question;
 - 2. Determine necessity for Owner obtaining additional exploration or tests with respect to the condition;
 - 3. Determine whether the condition falls within the differing site condition as stated herein;
 - 4. Obtain any pertinent cost or schedule information from Contractor;
 - Prepare recommendations to Owner regarding the Contractor's resumption of Work in connection with the subsurface or physical condition in question and the need for any change in the Drawings or Specifications; and
 - 6. Advise Owner in writing of Engineer's findings, conclusions, and recommendations.
- C. After receipt of Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, Owner shall issue a written statement to Contractor regarding the subsurface or physical condition in question, addressing the resumption of Work in connection with such condition, indicating whether any change in the Drawings or Specifications will be made, and adopting or rejecting Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, in whole or in part.

ARTICLE 12 - CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

12.01 Claims Process

- A. The party submitting a claim shall deliver it directly to the other party to the Contract and the Engineer promptly (but in no event later than 10 days) after the start of the event giving rise thereto.
- B. The party receiving a claim shall review it thoroughly, giving full consideration to its merits. The two parties shall seek to resolve the claim through the exchange of information and direct negotiations. All actions taken on a claim shall be stated in writing and submitted to the other party.

- C. If efforts to resolve a claim are not successful, the party receiving the claim may deny it by giving written notice of denial to the other party. If the receiving party does not take action on the claim within 45 days, the claim is deemed denied.
- D. If the dispute is not resolved to the satisfaction of the parties, Owner or Contractor shall give written notice to the other party of the intent to submit the dispute to a court of competent jurisdiction unless the Owner and Contractor both agree to an alternative dispute resolution process.

ARTICLE 13 - TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK

13.01 Tests and Inspections

- A. Owner will have access to the Site and the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspection, and testing. Contractor shall provide them proper and safe conditions for such access.
- B. Contractor shall give Owner timely notice of readiness of the Work for all required inspections and tests and shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required inspections and tests.
- C. If any Work that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered by Contractor without written concurrence of Owner, Contractor shall, if requested by Owner, uncover such Work for observation. Such uncovering shall be at Contractor's expense.

13.02 Defective Work

- A. Contractor shall ensure that the Work is not defective.
- B. Owner or Engineer has the authority to determine whether Work is defective, and to reject defective Work.
- C. Prompt notice of all defective Work of which Owner or Engineer has actual knowledge will be given to Contractor.
- D. The Contractor shall promptly correct all such defective Work.
- E. When correcting defective Work, Contractor shall take no action that would void or otherwise impair Owner's special warranty and guarantee, if any, on said Work.
- F. If the Work is defective or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, then Owner may order Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated.

ARTICLE 14 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR

14.01 Progress Payments

A. The Contractor shall prepare a schedule of values that will serve as the basis for progress payments. The schedule of values will be in a form of application for payment acceptable to Engineer. The unit price breakdown submitted with the bid will be used for unit price work. Break lump sum items into units that will allow for measurement of Work in progress.

14.02 Applications for Payments:

A. Contractor shall apply for payment in a form acceptable to the Engineer, no more frequently than monthly, to Engineer. Applications for payment will be prepared and signed by Contractor. Contractor shall provide supporting documentation required by the Contract

Documents. Payment will be paid for Work completed as of the date of the application for payment.

Beginning with the second application for payment, each application shall include an affidavit of Contractor stating that all previous progress payments received on account of the Work have been applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations associated with prior applications for payment.

14.03 Retainage

A. The Owner shall retain 5% (five percent) of each progress payment until the Work is substantially complete.

14.04 Review of Applications

- A. Within 10 days after receipt of each application for payment, the Owner will either indicate in writing a recommendation for payment and present the application for payment or return the application for payment to Contractor indicating in writing reasons for refusing to recommend payment. The Contractor will make the necessary corrections and resubmit the application for payment.
- B. Engineer will recommend reductions in payment (set-offs) which, in their opinion are necessary to protect Owner from loss because the Work is defective and requires correction or replacement.
- C. The Owner is entitled to impose set-offs against payment based on any claims that have been made against Owner on account of Contractor's conduct in the performance of the Work, incurred costs, losses, or damages on account of Contractor's conduct in the performance of the Work, or liquidated damages that have accrued as a result of Contractor's failure to complete the Work.

14.05 Contractor's Warranty of Title

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment furnished under the Contract will pass to Owner free and clear of (1) all liens and other title defects, and (2) all patent, licensing, copyright, or royalty obligations, no later than seven days after the time of payment by Owner.

14.06 Substantial Completion

- A. The Contractor shall notify Owner and Engineer in writing that the Work is substantially complete and request the Engineer issue a certificate of substantial completion when Contractor considers the Work ready for its intended use. Contractor shall at the same time submit to Owner an initial draft of punch list items to be completed or corrected before final payment.
- B. Engineer will inspect the Work with the Contractor to determine the status of completion. If Engineer does not consider the Work substantially complete, Engineer will notify Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor.
- C. If Engineer considers the Work substantially complete or upon resolution of all reasons for non-issuance of a certificate identified in 14.06.B, Engineer will issue a certificate of substantial completion which shall fix the date of substantial completion and include a punch list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment.

14.07 Final Inspection

A. Upon written notice from Contractor that the entire Work is complete, Engineer will promptly make a final inspection with Contractor and will notify Contractor in writing of all

particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work, or agreed portion thereof, is incomplete or defective. Contractor shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.

14.08 Final Payment

- A. Contractor may make application for final payment after Contractor has satisfactorily completed all Work defined in the Contract, including providing all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of inspection, annotated record documents and other documents.
- B. The final application for payment shall be accompanied (except as previously delivered) by:
 - 1. All documentation called for in the Contract Documents;
 - 2. Consent of the surety to final payment;
 - Satisfactory evidence that all title issues have been resolved such that title to all Work, materials, and equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any liens or other title defects, or will so pass upon final payment;
 - 4. A list of all disputes that Contractor believes are unsettled; and
 - 5. Complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all lien rights arising out of the Work, and of liens filed in connection with the Work.
- C. The Work is complete (subject to surviving obligations) when it is ready for final payment as established by the Owner's written recommendation of final payment.

14.09 Waiver of Claims

- A. The making of final payment will not constitute a waiver by Owner of claims or rights against Contractor.
- B. The acceptance of final payment by Contractor will constitute a waiver by Contractor of all claims and rights against Owner other than those pending matters that have been duly submitted.

ARTICLE 15 - SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

15.01 Owner May Suspend Work

A. At any time and without cause, Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not more than 60 consecutive days by written notice to Contractor and Engineer. Such notice will fix the date on which Work will be resumed. Contractor shall resume the Work on the date so fixed. Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to any such suspension.

15.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause

- A. Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents or other failure to comply with a material term of the Contract Documents will constitute a default by Contractor and justify termination for cause.
- B. If Contractor defaults in its obligations, then after giving Contractor and any surety ten days written notice that Owner is considering a declaration that Contractor is in default and termination of the Contract, Owner may proceed to:
 - 1. Declare Contractor to be in default, and give Contractor and any surety notice that the Contract is terminated; and

- Enforce the rights available to Owner under any applicable performance bond.
- C. Owner may not proceed with termination of the Contract under Paragraph 15.02.B if Contractor within seven days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate begins to correct its failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure.
- D. Subject to the terms and operation of any applicable performance bond, if Owner has terminated the Contract for cause, Owner may exclude Contractor from the Site, take possession of the Work, incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere, and complete the Work as Owner may deem expedient.
- E. In the case of a termination for cause, if the cost to complete the Work, including related claims, costs, losses, and damages, exceeds the unpaid contract balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner.

15.03 Owner May Terminate for Convenience

- A. Upon seven days written notice to Contractor, Owner may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner, terminate the Contract. In such case, Contractor shall be paid for, without duplication of any items:
 - Completed and acceptable Work executed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to the effective date of termination, including fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such Work;
 - Expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the Contract Documents in connection with uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such expenses; and
 - 3. Other reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination, including costs incurred to prepare a termination for convenience cost proposal.
- B. Contractor shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated overhead, profits, or revenue, or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.

15.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate

A. If, through no act or fault of Contractor, (1) the Work is suspended for more than 90 consecutive days by Owner or under an order of court or other public authority, or (2) Owner fails for 30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, then Contractor may, upon seven days written notice to Owner, and provided Owner does not remedy such suspension or failure within that time, either stop the Work until payment is received, or terminate the Contract and recover payment from the Owner.

ARTICLE 16 - CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS

16.01 Contractor Representations

- Contractor makes the following representations when entering into this Contract:
 - 1. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and reference items identified in the Contract Documents.
 - 2. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

- 3. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
- 4. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Siterelated reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and documents on:
 - a. The cost, progress, and performance of the Work:
 - b. The means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor; and
 - c. Contractor's safety precautions and programs.
- 5. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract.
- 6. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.
- 7. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor.
- 8. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.
- Contractor's entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Contractor that, without exception, all prices in the Contract are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 17 - MISCELLANEOUS

17.01 Cumulative Remedies

A. The duties and obligations imposed by this Contract and the rights and remedies available hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available by Laws or Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or by other provisions of the Contract. The provisions of this paragraph will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.

17.02 Limitation of Damages

A. Neither Owner, Engineer, nor any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, shall be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.

17.03 No Waiver

A. A party's non-enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Contract.

17.04 Survival of Obligations

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by, or given in accordance with the Contract, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the Contract, will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work or termination or completion of the Contract or termination of the services of Contractor.

17.05 Contractor's Certifications

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.

17.06 Controlling Law

A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

[continued on next page]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.

This Agreement will be effective on September 21, 2022 (which is the Effective Date of the Contract).

OWNER: BOX ELDER COUNTY

Codey Illium

SEAL Attention of UT County Add Codey Illum CONTRACTOR:

E.K. BAILEY CONSTRUCTION

Title:

Digitally signed by Kraig Urry Kraig Urry Date: 2022,09.20

Cheif building official

Attest:

Title:

Address for giving notices:

Box Elder County

1 South Main Street

Brigham City, UT 84302

Address for giving notices:

E.K. Bailey Construction

1243 North Washington Blvd.

Ogden, UT 84404

License No.:

248601-5501

(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)

(where applicable)

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence of authority to sign. If Owner is a public body, attach evidence of authority to sign and resolution or other documents authorizing execution of this Agreement.)

NOTE TO USER: Use in those states or other jurisdictions where applicable or required.